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part of a joint request which included due process requests from five other students. The
due process requests were filed jointly due to the fact that each complaint involved denial
of FAPE involving the 4-way Agreement.

54. On November 13, 2007, Tamara Loughrey, attorney for Petitioner received a
call from Jen, a clerk at OAH, who informed her that she had never seen a case such as
the one that was filed, and requested that the cases be re-filed individually. Ms. Loughrey
told Jen that she would make some corrections to the complaint in order to clear up any
confusion. She also requested that OAH put any decision in writing. Petitioners filed a
Corrected and Clarified Joint Request for Due Process the same day.

55. On November 20, 2007, an OAH clerk named Laura left a message with Ms.
Loughrey’s office stating that the complaints would not be opened. On November 27,
2007, Ms. Loughery wrote a letter to Judge Sherianne Laba, expressing her concern that
the case had not been opened or dismissed by OAH. The letter requested that OAH open
the complaint or provide a written decision stating why it was dismissed.

56. OnJanuary 11, 2008, Ms. Loughrey once again wrote to Judge Laba, this
time to express her concern that she had not received a response regarding her request
that OAH provide written notice of a decision. She also wrote to express her concern
regarding a phone call her office received from OAH clerk Laura stating that OAH had
no record of the case. In this letter, she included three exhibits — the November 9, 2007
Due Process Complaint with proof of service, the November 13, 2007 Corrected and
Clarified Joint Request for Due Process, and a copy of the November 27, 2007 letter to
Judge Laba.

57. It was not until January 22, 2008 that Ms. Loughrey received a written
response from OAH in the form of a letter from Judge Laba. In this letter, Judge Laba
stated that OAH “will not file an order regarding whether or not this case is opened.”
The letter also noted that OAH would not hear any of the issues regarding ADA, 504, the
Lanterman Act, the 14" Amendment and the California Constitution Art. 1 § 31. Finally,

the letter noted that Plaintiffs were not prevented from pursuing the claims as a class
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action in District Court. As OAH refused to hear Plaintiffs issues regarding the 4-way
agreement, Plaintiffs have been left with no choice but to file this action in Federal court.

Exhaustion of CDE Remedies

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

60. Plaintiffs bring this action on behalf of themselves and all others similarly
situated. The class which Plaintiffs represent is composed of all children with disabilities
who have been prevented from receiving intensive ABA Services by implementation of
the PPG/4-Way Contract .

61. The persons in the class are so numerous that joinder of all such persons is
impractical and the disposition of their claims in a class action is a benefit to the parties
and to the Court.

62. There is a well-defined community of interest in the questions of law and fact
involved affecting the parties to be represented in that they have all been forced to accept
inadequate services for their disabilities because of the implementation of the PPG/4-Way
Contract.

63.  Common questions of law and fact predominate in the class.

64.  The claims of Plaintiffs are typical of those of the class and Plaintiffs will fairly
and adequately represent the interests of the class.

65.  The references to Plaintiffs shall be deemed to include the named Plaintiffs and

all others similarly situated.

PLAINTIFFS’ CAUSES OF ACTION

COUNT I: Violation of 20 U.S.C. §1400 et. seq.
(Each Plaintiff and all others similarly situated Against their respective School District,
Board/Office of Education, SELPA and Valley Mountain Regional Center and the school
district and SELPA of all others similarly situated)

66.  Plaintiffs incorporate, by reference herein, the allegations in the preceding
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paragraphs, inclusive.

67.  Federal and California law set forth several requirements regarding the

placement of children in educational programs by public educational agencies:

(a) School Districts must ensure that a continuum of alternative placements is
available to meet the needs of children with disabilities for special education and
related services.

(b) Placement decisions must be made by a group of person, including the
parents, within an IEP meeting.

(¢) Informed parental consent must be obtained before conducting any evaluation
on a child.

(d) Assessments of children must be conducted in an unbiased manner in the form
most likely to yield accurate information on what the child knows and can do

academically, developmentally, and functionally.

68.  Defendants have implemented a system under the PPG/4-Way Agreement
which has unlawfully restricted access to intensive ABA services for Plaintiffs, as well as
those similarly situated, in contravention of federal and state law. This system (a) denies
access to students whose parents refuse to sign the contract, (b) denies access to students
who do not meet the contract’s criteria, (c) allows students to be removed from a program
of intensive services for not meeting the contract’s criteria, (d) creates a system of
waiting lists for students which denies them access to a continuum of placements, (e)
allows for the development of children’s educational program outside of the IEP team
process and (f) allows for assessments of children without the consent of their parents (g)
creates a barrier which prevents students access to needed services under ADA and 504
and (h) prevents parents from obtaining independent evaluations for their children.

69. Defendants’ unlawful actions were and continue to be intentional, willful,
malicious, and/or done with reckless disregard to the right of Plaintiffs and others

similarly situated to obtain services which they require to gain an educational benefit.
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COUNT II: Violation of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
(By J.H, L.H. and all others similarly situated Against Modesto City Schools,
Modesto City Schools SELPA and Valley Mountain Regional Center and the
school district and SELPA of all others similarly situated)

70.  Plaintiff incorporates and realleges as though fully set forth herein the

allegations set forth in preceding paragraphs, inclusive.

71.  The acts herein constitute violations of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973, 29 U.S.C. § 749 et seq., and the regulations promulgated thereunder. Section 504
provides, inter alia, that no otherwise qualified individual with a disability shall, solely by
reason of his disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
subjected to discrimination under, any program or activity receiving federal financial
assistance.

72.  Each defendant named herein is a direct recipient of federal financial
assistance sufficient to invoke the coverage of Section 504.

73.  All plaintiffs are qualified individuals with disabilities.

74.  Solely by reason of their disabilities, Plaintiffs have been, and continue to be,
excluded from participation in, denied the benefit of, and subjected to discrimination in
their attempts to receive full and equal access to the facilities, programs, services and
activities offered by Defendants.

75. This discrimination includes, but is not limited to, denying Plaintiffs access to
intensive ABA services, on the basis that Plaintiffs are unable to meet an entrance criteria
and removing Plaintiffs from the intensive ABA program if they do not perform at a
minimum level.

76.  As a direct and proximate result of the Defendants’ discrimination, Plaintiffs

suffered damages in an amount to be proven at trial.
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77.  Plaintiffs are entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees pursuant to 29 U.S.C. §
794(a).
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request relief as set forth below.

COUNT 11I: Violations of Title Il of The Americans with Disabilities Act
(By J.H, L.H. and all others similarly situated Against Modesto City Schools,
Modesto City Schools SELPA, Valley Mountain Regional Center and the school
district and SELPA of all others similarly situated)

77.  Plaintiff incorporates and realleges as though fully set forth herein the

allegations set forth in preceding paragraphs.

78. Title Il of the ADA, 42 U.S.C. § 12131 et. seq. (ADA) and the regulations
promulgated thereunder, 28 C.F.R. Part 35, governing state and local governmental
entities, protect persons from discrimination by public entities on the basis of disability.

79.  The acts alleged herein constitute violations of the ADA., and the
regulations promulgated thereunder. Title II of the ADA provides, that no qualified
individual with a disability shall, by reason of such disability, be excluded from
participation in or be denied the benefits of the services, programs, or activities of a
public entity, or be subjected to discrimination by any such entity.

80. Each Defendant named herein has employed and continues to employ more
than 15 people.

81. Defendants’ discriminatory conduct includes, but is not limited to, denying
Plaintiffs access to intensive ABA services, on the basis that Plaintiffs are unable to meet
an entrance criteria and removing Plaintiffs from the intensive ABA program if they do
not perform at a minimum level.

82.  Defendants’ conduct constitutes ongoing and continuous violations of the ADA
and, unless restrained from doing so, Defendants will continue to violate said law. Said

conduct, unless enjoined, will continue to inflict injuries for which Plaintiffs have no
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adequate remedy at law.
83. Consequently, Plaintiffs are entitled to injunctive relief pursuant to section 308
of the ADA (42 U.S.C. section 12188). Plaintiffs are also entitled to reasonable

attorneys’ fees and costs.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request relief as set forth below.

COUNT IV: Violation of Due Process Rights Under the U.S. Constitution
Amendment 14, Sec. 1 and the California Constitution, Article 1, Section 7(a)
(All Plaintiffs and all others similarly situated Against OAH and CDE)

84.  Platiffs incorporate, by reference herein, the allegations in the preceding
paragraphs, inclusive.

85. The Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution provides that no
state shall deprive any person of life, liberty or property without due process of law.
Similarly, the California Constitution, Art 1, Sec. 7(a) also provides that a person may not
be deprived of life, liberty or property without due process of law. Education is a
property right protected by the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment. Gross
v. Lopez, 419 U.S. 565, 574 (1975). Due process includes, at minimum, the right to be
provided notice and opportunity to be heard. Jones v. Flowers, 547 U.S. 220, 240-241
(2006).

86. A student who receives special education services’ opportunity to be heard is set
forth under the IDEA, which allows students to be heard in the form of a due process
hearing. Specifically, 20 U.S.C. § 1415(b)(6)(a) requires any state or local educational
agency which takes federal money to establish procedures to allow a parent of a child to
present a complaint with respect to “the provision of a free appropriate public education
to such child.” When parents exercise their right to file a complaint, 20 U.S.C.
1415(f)(1)(a) allows them to “have an opportunity for an impartial due process hearing.”
Once a parent files a request for a due process hearing, a hearing officer is required by
Cal. Ed. Code § 56502(f) to “immediately... notify, in writing, all parties of the request
for the hearing and the scheduled date for the hearing. The notice shall advise all parties

of all their rights relating to procedural safeguards. Both 34 C.F.R. 300.511 and Cal. Ed.
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Code § 56502(f) mandate that a hearing officer must hold a hearing and render a final
decision within 45 days after the request for a due process hearing has been filed.

87. In this case, Plaintiffs filed a request for due process with OAH on November 9,
2007. Plaintiffs did not receive a written response from OAH until January 22, 2008, a
full 71 days after the filing and 26 days beyond the date when a decision should have
been rendered. Unfortunately, this severely delayed response did not do anything to allow
Plaintiffs to proceed with the case at the administrative level. OAH determined that it
“will not file an order regarding whether or not this case is opened.” By failing to provide
Plaintiffs with an opportunity to present their complaints in the form of a due process

hearing, Defendants have violated Plaintiffs Constitutional rights to Due Process.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request relief as set forth below.

COUNT V: Violations the 14™ Amendment’s Right to Freely Travel
(By J.H., L.H. and all others similarly situated, Against Modesto City Schools,
Modesto City Schools SELPA, Modesto City Schools Board of Education, VMRC
and the school district and SELPA of all others similarly situated)

88.  Petitioners incorporate, by reference herein, the allegations in the preceding
paragraphs, inclusive.

89.  Under the Equal Protection Clause of the 14th Amendment of the United
States Constitution, citizens have the right to freely travel. The Supreme Court has been
clear that it 1s “constitutionally impermissible’ for a State to enact durational residency
requirements for the purpose of inhibiting the migration of needy persons into the
State.” Saenz v. Roe, 526 U.S. 489, 499 (1999). (quoting Shapiro v. Thompson, 394
U.S. 618,629 (1969)). This prohibition on restricting the right to travel extends to

restrictions on intrastate travel as well. See Valenciano v. Bateman, 323 F.Supp. 600,
603 (D.C. Ariz. 1971).

90. Defendants have purposefully instituted a waiting list system designed to
exclude those children who have recently moved to one of the school Districts which
are part of the PPG/4-Way agreement from receiving intensive ABA services. This
system violates Plaintiffs constitutional right to freely travel by denying them services
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to which they are entitled on the basis of their migration from another area.

COUNT VI: Violation of Substantive Due Process Rights Under the U.S.
Constitution Amendment 14, Sec. 1

(By all Plaintiffs and all others similarly situated Against their respective
school district, SELPA and Office/Board of Education and Valley Mountain
Regional Center and the school district and SELPA of all those similarly
situated)

91.  Plaintiffs incorporate, by reference herein, the allegations in the preceding
paragraphs, inclusive.

92.  The Due Process clause “contains a substantive component that bars certain
arbitrary, wrongful government actions ‘regardless of the fairness of the procedures used
to implement them.”” Foucha v. Louisiana, 504 U.S. 71, 79 (1992) (quoting Zinermon v.
Burch, 494 U.S. 113, 125 (1986).

93. In this case, Defendants have arbitrarily implemented the 4-Way Agreement
to limit the availability of intensive ABA services for children and to determine which
children are eligible for the services. The agreement has created an artificial monopoly
on intensive ABA services in the Central Valley by limiting the number of providers. In
addition, the criteria used by Defendants to determine which children obtain these
services and which children can remain in the programs that provide these services is not
based on solid scientific principles. Instead of being designed to include all children who
could benefit from this program, the criteria 1s arbitrarily designed to exclude children
based on impermissible and illegitimate purposes unrelated to educational benefit, such as
IQ, race, nationality, or the language spoken by their parents. Thus, the agreement and its
method of implementation violate Plaintiffs’ substantive rights under the Due Process

clause.
COUNT VII: Violations of the Unruh Civil Rights Act
(By J.H, L.H. and all others similarly situated Against Modesto City Schools,
Modesto City Schools SELPA and Valley Mountain Regional Center and the
school district and SELPA of all those similarly situated)
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94. Plaintiff incorporates and realleges as though fully set forth herein the
allegations set forth in preceding paragraphs, inclusive.

95. Pursuant to California Civil Code § 51 et seq. and 54 et seq. all persons
within the jurisdiction of the State of California are entitled to the full and equal
accommodations, advantages, facilities, privileges, or services in all business
establishments of every kind whatsoever.

96. Defendants and their facilities constitute business establishments under
California Code § 51 and 54 and as such are prohibited from discriminating against
Plaintiffs on the basis of disability. Defendants violated California Civil Code § 51 by
discriminating against Plaintiffs by the examples set forth above. As a result, Plaintiffs
are entitled pursuant to California Civil Code § 52(a) for actual damages up to three times
the amount of actual damages but no less than $4,000 per each violation. Additionally,
Plaintiffs are entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees pursuant to California Civil Code §
52(a).

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request relief as set forth below

COUNT VIII: Violation of 42 U.S.C.A.§ 1983
(Each Plaintiff and all others similarly situated Against the respective School
District, Board/Office of Education, SELPA and Valley Mountain Regional Center
and the school district and SELPA of all others similarly situated)

97.  Plaintiffs incorporate and reallege as though fully set forth herein the
allegations set forth in preceding paragraphs, inclusive. The acts and omissions of the
Superintendent, Board Members, and Director of Special Education, under color of law as
well as official policy and custom, as herein above set forth, deprive Plaintiffs of their
rights under IDEA, Title II of the ADA, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the
Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment and the Equal Protection Clause of the
Fourteenth Amendment, in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1983, for which Plaintiffs seek and
are entitled to injunctive and declaratory relief.

98.  The acts of Defendants as herein alleged were willful, intentional, and
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oppressive. Plaintiffs have no adequate remedy at law and unless the relief requested

herein is granted, Plaintiffs will suffer irreparable harm by the deprivation of their rights

under federal law. Plaintiff has suffered harm and continues to suffer harm, as a result of

Defendants 42 U.S.C.A. violations.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request relief as set forth below.

N o

DATED: April, 2007

Z.F. v. Ripon et al.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF
An order and judgment enjoining Defendants from implementing the
PPG/4-Way Agreement or any policies or actions substantially
similar to the agreement. .
A declaration that the PPG/4-Way Agreement, and Defendants
manner of implementing the agreement, is a violation of Federal and
State law.
A restraining order and/or preliminary and permanent injunctive
relief calling for the immediate cessation of the PPG/4-Way

agreement.

Damages pursuant to California Civil Code Section 52(a) in an
amount up to three times actual damages but no less than $4,000
per violation per Plaintiff per day;

Plaintiffs’ reasonable attorneys’ fees;

For costs of suit incurred by this complaint; and

For other and further relief as the Court deems proper.

LOUGHREY & WOELFEL, LLP
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